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M EM O R AN D U M  
 

To: PBES Staff From: Rick Marshall 
Deputy Director of Public Works 

    
Date: July 25, 2016 Re: Frog’s Leap Winery 

P14-00054 

 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the subject permit application.   
 
I have reviewed the information in the Focused Traffic Analysis for the Proposed Frog’s Leap 

Winery Modifications Project, prepared by Omni Means and dated July 13, 2016 (revised).  The 
analysis is acceptable and I concur with the assumptions made, the methods used in the evaluation, 
and the conclusions reached.  The study adequately demonstrates that the proposed use in the 
proposed location will not result in any significant impacts, either project-specific or cumulative, on 
traffic circulation in the vicinity.  Therefore, no mitigation measures are required with this project. 

 
I offer the following comments from the Department of Public Works: 
 
Left-Turn Lane required.  The project as proposed meets the warrants for installation of a left-

turn lane on SR 128 Conn Creek Road at the project access driveway.  The improvements shall be 
constructed in compliance with the Napa County Road & Street Standards.  Additional right-of-way 
shall be dedicated to the public as necessary to encompass the improvements. 

 
The applicants have requested an exception to this requirement under the provisions of 

Paragraph 3(G) of the Napa County Road & Street Standards.  Under their request, the applicants 
would construct alternative improvements on SR 128 Conn Creek Road, widening the shoulder on the 
east side of the road to provide a place for northbound traffic to carefully bypass a waiting left-turning 
vehicle, if necessary.  The improvements would be constructed following recommendations provided by 
a registered consulting arborist to minimize potential harm to several significant trees in the vicinity. 

 
This request has tentative approval from Public Works, as is the process for exception requests 

dealing with public road requirements.  The decision will become final in conjunction with the decision 
on the Use Permit itself, as it relies on the project’s environmental determination. 

 
Encroachment Permit required.  The proposed improvements on State Route 128, a Caltrans-

maintained road, will require an encroachment permit from that agency.   
 
Other.  The Public Works Department has the following other concerns: 

 
 1. The Focused Traffic Impact Analysis indicates that marketing events will be held 

at times outside of peak traffic periods.  It is also assumed that the winery will be closed to visitation the 
entire day of any 500-person marketing event, and closed to visitation when hosting a 150-person 
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event during normal visitation hours.  The project should be conditioned to memorialize these 
assumptions: 

a. Marketing events shall not begin nor end during the hours of 3-6 p.m. 
b. The winery shall be closed to visitation the entire day of any 500-person marketing 

event. 
c. The winery shall be closed to visitation when any marketing event of 150 persons or 

greater is held during normal visitation hours.  The closure shall apply from ½ hour 
before the start of the event until ½ hour after the conclusion of the event. 

 
2. The Focused Traffic Impact Analysis indicates that sight lines from the proposed project 

driveway will meet standards assuming proposed landscaping is maintained in a manner which does 
not interfere with these sight lines.  The project should be conditioned to memorialize this assumption – 
landscaping at the project driveway shall be maintained to not interfere with sight lines required for safe 
stopping distance on SR 128 Conn Creek Road. 
 
 Please contact me at Rick.Marshall@countyofnapa.org or call (707) 259-8381 if you have 
questions or need additional information. 
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